Wellcare Prime by Absolute Total Care (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) offered by Absolute Total Care, Inc.

# Annual Notice of Changes for 2023

## Introduction

You are currently enrolled as a member of Wellcare Prime. Next year, there will be changes to the plan's benefits, coverage and rules. This document tells you about the changes and where to find more information about them. To get more information about benefits or rules please review the Member Handbook, which is located on our website at mmp.absolutetotalcare.com. Key terms and their definitions appear in alphabetical order in the last chapter of the *Member Handbook*.

# **Table of Contents**

Α.	Disclaimers	3
В.	Reviewing your Medicare and Medicaid coverage for next year	3
	B1. Additional resources	4
	B2. Information about Wellcare Prime	4
	B3. Important things to do:	5
С	Changes to the network providers and pharmacies	6
D	Changes to benefits for next year	6
	D1. Changes to benefits for medical services	6
	D2. Changes to prescription drug coverage	7
Ε.	How to choose a plan	10
	E1. How to stay in our plan	10
	E2. How to change plans	11
F.	How to get help	13



**If you have questions**, please call Wellcare Prime at 1-855-735-4398 (TTY: 711) from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m., Monday through Friday. After hours, on weekends and on federal holidays, you may be asked to leave a message. Your call will be returned within the next business day. The call is free. **For more information**, visit mmp.absolutetotalcare.com.

F1. Getting help from Wellcare Prime	13
F2. Getting help from the state enrollment broker, South Carolina Healthy Connections Choices	13
F3. Getting help from the Healthy Connections Prime Advocate	13
F4. Getting help from the State Health Insurance Assistance Program (SHIP)	14
F5. Getting help from Medicare	14
F6. Getting help from Healthy Connections Medicaid	14
F7. Getting help from your Quality Improvement Organization (QIO)	15

## A. Disclaimers

This is not a complete list. The benefit information is a brief summary, not a complete description of benefits. For more information contact the plan or read the Wellcare Prime Member Handbook.

# B. Reviewing your Medicare and Medicaid coverage for next year

It is important to review your coverage now to make sure it will still meet your needs next year. If it does not meet your needs, you may be able to leave the plan. Refer to section E2 for more information.

If you leave our plan, you will still be in the Medicare and Healthy Connections Medicaid programs as long as you are eligible.

- If you leave our plan, you can choose to enroll in a different Medicare-Medicaid Plan, or you can return to getting your Medicare and Healthy Connections Medicaid services separately.
- If you do not want to enroll in a different Medicare-Medicaid Plan, you will have a choice about how to get your Medicare benefits (refer to page 11 to find out your options).

## **B1. Additional resources**

- ATENCIÓN: Si habla español, tiene a su disposición servicios gratuitos de asistencia lingüística. Llame al 1-855-735-4398 (TTY: 711) de 8 a.m. a 8 p.m., de lunes a viernes. Luego del horario de atención, los fines de semana y los días feriados federales, es posible que se le pida que deje un mensaje. Le devolveremos la llamada el próximo día hábil. La llamada es gratuita.
- You can get this document for free in other formats, such as large print, braille, or audio. Call 1-855-735-4398 (TTY: 711) from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m., Monday through Friday. After hours, on weekends and on federal holidays, you may be asked to leave a message. Your call will be returned within the next business day. The call is free.
- To always get this document and other material in another language or format, now and in the future, please call Member Services. This is called a "standing request". We will document your choice. If you later want to change the language and/or format choice, please call Member Services. Find the Member Services phone number at the bottom of this page.

## **B2. Information about Wellcare Prime**

- Wellcare Prime by Absolute Total Care (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) is a health plan that contracts with both Medicare and South Carolina Healthy Connections Medicaid to provide benefits of both programs to enrollees.
- Coverage under Wellcare Prime is qualifying health coverage called "minimum essential coverage." It satisfies the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act's (ACA) individual shared responsibility requirement. Visit the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) website at <a href="www.irs.gov/Affordable-Care-Act/Individuals-and-Families">www.irs.gov/Affordable-Care-Act/Individuals-and-Families</a> for more information on the individual shared responsibility requirement.
- Wellcare Prime by Absolute Total Care (Medicare-Medicaid Plan) is offered by Absolute Total Care, Inc. When this *Annual Notice of Changes* says "we," "us," or "our," it means Absolute Total Care, Inc. When it says "the plan" or "our plan," it means Wellcare Prime.

# **B3.** Important things to do:

- Check if there are any changes to our benefits that may affect you.
  - o Are there any changes that affect the services you use?
  - It is important to review benefit changes to make sure they will work for you next year.
  - Look in sections D1 and D2 for information about benefit changes for our plan.
- Check if there are any changes to our prescription drug coverage that may affect you.
  - Will your drugs be covered? Are they in a different tier? Can you continue to use the same pharmacies?
  - It is important to review the changes to make sure our drug coverage will work for you next year.
  - o Look in section D2 for information about changes to our drug coverage.
- Check to find out if your providers and pharmacies will be in our network next year.
  - Are your doctors, including your specialists, in our network? What about your pharmacy? What about the hospitals or other providers you use?
  - Look in section C for information about our *Provider and Pharmacy Directory*.
- Think about your overall costs in the plan.
  - O How do the total costs compare to other coverage options?
- Think about whether you are happy with our plan.

# If you decide to stay with Wellcare Prime:

If you want to stay with us next year, it's easy – you don't need to do anything. If you don't make a change, you will automatically stay enrolled in our plan.

## If you decide to change plans:

If you decide other coverage will better meet your needs, you may be able to switch plans (refer to section E2 for more information). If you enroll in a new plan, your new coverage will begin on the first day of the following month. Look in section E2, page 11 to learn more about your choices.

# C. Changes to the network providers and pharmacies

Our provider and pharmacy networks have changed for 2023.

Please review the 2023 Provider and Pharmacy Directory to find out if your providers or pharmacy are in our network. An updated Provider and Pharmacy Directory is located on our website listed at the bottom of the page. You may also call Member Services at the number at the bottom of the page for updated provider information or to ask us to mail you a Provider and Pharmacy Directory.

It is important that you know that we may also make changes to our network during the year. If your provider does leave the plan, you have certain rights and protections. For more information, refer to Chapter 3 of your *Member Handbook*.

# D. Changes to benefits for next year

# D1. Changes to benefits for medical services

We are changing our coverage for certain medical services next year. The table below describes these changes.

	2022 (this year)	2023 (next year)
Space Heaters	Space heaters were covered for members on the Community Choices, HIV/AIDS, or Mechanical Ventilator Dependent waivers, if the member's case manager authorized them.	Space heaters are <b>not</b> covered.
Diabetic Supplies and Services	You pay a <b>\$0 copay</b> .  Diabetic glucometer and supplies are limited to Accu-Chek and OneTouch when obtained at a pharmacy.  Other brands are not covered unless pre-authorized.	You pay a <b>\$0 copay</b> .  Diabetic glucometer and supplies are limited to OneTouch when obtained at a pharmacy. Other brands and continuous glucose monitoring systems are not covered unless preauthorized.  Quantity limits may apply.

# D2. Changes to prescription drug coverage

## **Changes to our Drug List**

An updated *List of Covered Drugs* is located on our website listed at the bottom of the page. You may also call Member Services at the number at the bottom of the page for updated drug information or to ask us to mail you a *List of Covered Drugs*.

The List of Covered Drugs is also called the "Drug List."

We made changes to our Drug List, including changes to the drugs we cover and changes to the restrictions that apply to our coverage for certain drugs.

Review the Drug List to **make sure your drugs will be covered next year** and to find out if there will be any restrictions.

If you are affected by a change in drug coverage, we encourage you to:

- Work with your doctor (or other prescriber) to find a different drug that we cover.
  - You can call Member Services at the number at the bottom of the page to ask for a list of covered drugs that treat the same condition.
  - This list can help your provider find a covered drug that might work for you.
- Work with your doctor (or other prescriber) and ask the plan to make an exception to cover the drug.
  - You can ask for an exception before next year and we will give you an answer within 72 hours after we get your request (or your prescriber's supporting statement).
  - To learn what you must do to ask for an exception, refer to Chapter 9 of the 2023 Member Handbook or call Member Services at the number at the bottom of the page.
  - If you need help asking for an exception, you can contact Member Services or your care coordinator. Refer to Chapter 2 and Chapter 3 of the *Member* Handbook to learn more about how to contact your care coordinator.
- Ask the plan to cover a temporary supply of the drug.
  - In some situations, we will cover a temporary supply of the drug during the first 90 days of the calendar year.
  - o This temporary supply will be for up to 30 days of medication at a retail pharmacy and at a long-term care pharmacy, up to 31 days. (To learn more about when you can get a temporary supply and how to ask for one, refer to Chapter 5 of the *Member Handbook*.)
  - When you get a temporary supply of a drug, you should talk with your doctor to decide what to do when your temporary supply runs out. You can either switch to a different drug covered by the plan or ask the plan to make an exception for you and cover your current drug.
  - If you have a current formulary exception that our plan approved in 2022, and you remain a member of Wellcare Prime for 2023, we may continue to cover this exception during 2023. You will receive a letter with approval dates if we decide to continue to cover your exception during 2023. However, if we decide not to continue to cover the exception during 2023, your doctor (or other prescriber) must work with Wellcare Prime to request a new exception for the 2023 calendar year. To learn what you must do to ask for an

exception, see Chapter 9, of the *2023 Member Handbook* or call Member Services at 1-855-735-4398 (TTY: 711). For Member Services hours of operation, please see the bottom of this page.

## Changes to prescription drug costs

There are no changes to the amount you pay for prescription drugs in 2023. Read below for more information about your prescription drug coverage.

We moved some of the drugs on the Drug List to a lower or higher drug tier. To find out if your drugs will be in a different tier, look them up in the Drug List.

The following table shows your costs for drugs in each of our 3 drug tiers.

	2022 (this year)	2023 (next year)
Drugs in Tier 1 (Generic Drugs)	Your copay for a one-month (30-day) supply is <b>\$0 per prescription</b> .	Your copay for a one-month (30-day) supply is <b>\$0 per prescription</b> .
Cost for a one-month supply of a drug in Tier 1 that is filled at a network pharmacy		
Drugs in Tier 2 (Brand Drugs)	Your copay for a one-month (30-day) supply is <b>\$0 per prescription</b> .	Your copay for a one-month (30-day) supply is <b>\$0 per prescription</b> .
Cost for a one-month supply of a drug in Tier 2 that is filled at a network pharmacy		
Drugs in Tier 3  (Non-Medicare Prescription and Over-the-Counter Drugs)	Your copay for a one-month (30-day) supply is <b>\$0 per prescription</b> .	Your copay for a one-month (30-day) supply is <b>\$0 per prescription</b> .
Cost for a one-month supply of a drug in Tier 3 that is filled at a network pharmacy		

**Important Message About What You Pay for Vaccines** – Our plan covers most Part D vaccines at no cost to you. Call Member Services for more information.

# E. How to choose a plan

# E1. How to stay in our plan

We hope to keep you as a member next year.

You do not have to do anything to stay in your health plan. If you do not sign up for a different Medicare-Medicaid Plan, change to a Medicare Advantage Plan, or change to Original Medicare, you will automatically stay enrolled as a member of our plan for 2023.

## E2. How to change plans

You can end your membership at any time during the year by enrolling in another Medicare Advantage Plan, enrolling in another Medicare-Medicaid Plan, or moving to Original Medicare.

These are the four ways people usually end membership in our plan:

## 1. You can change to:

### A different Medicare-Medicaid Plan

### Here is what to do:

Call South Carolina Healthy Connections
Choices at 1-877-552-4642, Monday
through Friday from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. TTY
users should call 1-877-552-4670. Tell
them you want to leave Wellcare Prime and
join a different Medicare-Medicaid Plan. If
you are not sure what plan you want to join,
they can tell you about other plans in your
area.

Your coverage with Wellcare Prime will end on the last day of the month that we get your request.

## 2. You can change to:

# A Medicare health plan, such as a Medicare Advantage Plan or a Program of All-inclusive Care for the Elderly (PACE)

#### Here is what to do:

Call Medicare at 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. TTY users should call 1-877-486-2048.

If you need help or more information:

Call the State Health Insurance
 Assistance Program (SHIP) at 1-800 868-9095. TTY users should call 711.
 In South Carolina, the SHIP is called
 the Insurance Counseling Assistance
 and Referrals for Elders (I-CARE)
 program.

You will automatically be disenrolled from Wellcare Prime when your new plan's coverage begins.

## 3. You can change to:

# Original Medicare with a separate Medicare prescription drug plan

#### Here is what to do:

Call Medicare at 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. TTY users should call 1-877-486-2048.

If you need help or more information:

Call the State Health Insurance
 Assistance Program (SHIP) at 1-800 868-9095. TTY users should call 711.
 In South Carolina, the SHIP is called
 the Insurance Counseling Assistance
 and Referrals for Elders (I-CARE)
 program.

You will automatically be disenrolled from Wellcare Prime when your Original Medicare and prescription drug plan coverage begins.

## 4. You can change to:

# Original Medicare without a separate Medicare prescription drug plan

**NOTE**: If you switch to Original Medicare and do not enroll in a separate Medicare prescription drug plan, Medicare may enroll you in a drug plan, unless you tell Medicare you don't want to join.

You should only drop prescription drug coverage if you have drug coverage from another source, such as an employer or union. If you have questions about whether you need drug coverage, call Insurance Counseling Assistance and Referrals for Elders (I-CARE) at 1-800-868-9095. TTY users should call 711.

#### Here is what to do:

Call Medicare at 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. TTY users should call 1-877-486-2048.

If you need help or more information:

Call the State Health Insurance
 Assistance Program (SHIP) at 1-800 868-9095. TTY users should call 711.
 In South Carolina, the SHIP is called
 the Insurance Counseling Assistance
 and Referrals for Elders (I-CARE)
 program.

You will automatically be disenrolled from Wellcare Prime when your Original Medicare coverage begins.

# F. How to get help

## F1. Getting help from Wellcare Prime

Questions? We're here to help. Please call Member Services at the number at the bottom of the page. We are available for phone calls from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m., Monday through Friday. After hours, on weekends and on federal holidays, you may be asked to leave a message. Your call will be returned within the next business day.

## Your 2023 Member Handbook

The 2023 Member Handbook is the legal, detailed description of your plan benefits. It has details about next year's benefits. It explains your rights and the rules you need to follow to get covered services and prescription drugs.

The 2023 Member Handbook will be available by October 15. An up-to-date copy of the 2023 Member Handbook is available on our website listed at the bottom of the page. You may also call Member Services at the number at the bottom of the page to ask us to mail you a 2023 Member Handbook.

### Our website

You can also visit our website listed at the bottom of the page. As a reminder, our website has the most up-to-date information about our provider and pharmacy network (*Provider and Pharmacy Directory*) and our Drug List (*List of Covered Drugs*).

# F2. Getting help from the state enrollment broker, South Carolina Healthy Connections Choices

The enrollment broker helps people choose between the different Medicare-Medicaid Plans, enroll, change plans, or disenroll. The enrollment broker is called South Carolina Healthy Connections Choices, and it is not connected with any insurance company or health plan. You can call South Carolina Healthy Connections Choices at 1-877-552-4642, Monday through Friday from 8 a.m. to 6 p.m. TTY users should call 1-877-552-4670.

# F3. Getting help from the Healthy Connections Prime Advocate

The Healthy Connections Prime Advocate is an ombudsman program that helps people enrolled in Healthy Connections Prime with service or billing problems. The Healthy Connections Prime Advocate can help you if you are having a problem with Wellcare Prime. The ombudsman's services are free.

 The Healthy Connections Prime Advocate is an ombudsman program that works as an advocate on your behalf. They can answer questions if you have a problem or complaint and can help you understand what to do.

- The Healthy Connections Prime Advocate makes sure you have information related to your rights and protections and how you can get your concerns resolved.
- The Healthy Connections Prime Advocate is not connected with us or with any insurance company or health plan. The phone number for the Healthy Connections Prime Advocate is 1-844-477-4632. TTY users should call 711.

# F4. Getting help from the State Health Insurance Assistance Program (SHIP)

You can also call the State Health Insurance Assistance Program (SHIP). In South Carolina, the SHIP is called the Insurance Counseling Assistance and Referrals for Elders (I-CARE) program. I-CARE counselors can help you understand your Medicare-Medicaid Plan choices and answer questions about switching plans. I-CARE is not connected with any insurance company or health plan. The I-CARE phone number is 1-800-868-9095. TTY users should call 711.

## F5. Getting help from Medicare

To get information directly from Medicare, you can call 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. TTY users should call 1-877-486-2048.

## Medicare's Website

You can visit the Medicare website (<u>www.medicare.gov</u>). If you choose to disenroll from your Medicare-Medicaid Plan and enroll in a Medicare Advantage plan, the Medicare website has information about costs, coverage, and quality ratings to help you compare Medicare Advantage plans.

You can find information about Medicare Advantage plans available in your area by using the Medicare Plan Finder on the Medicare website. (To view the information about plans, refer to <a href="https://www.medicare.gov">www.medicare.gov</a> and click on "Find plans.")

### Medicare & You 2023

You can read the *Medicare & You 2023* handbook. Every year in the fall, this booklet is mailed to people with Medicare. It has a summary of Medicare benefits, rights and protections, and answers to the most frequently asked questions about Medicare.

If you don't have a copy of this booklet, you can get it at the Medicare website (<a href="www.medicare.gov/Pubs/pdf/10050-medicare-and-you.pdf">www.medicare.gov/Pubs/pdf/10050-medicare-and-you.pdf</a>) or by calling 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. TTY users should call 1-877-486-2048.

# F6. Getting help from Healthy Connections Medicaid

The phone number for Healthy Connections Medicaid is 1-888-549-0820. This call is free. TTY users should call 1-888-842-3620.

## F7. Getting help from your Quality Improvement Organization (QIO)

The QIO is a group of doctors and other healthcare professionals who help improve the quality of care for people with Medicare. In South Carolina, the QIO is a company called KEPRO. KEPRO is not connected with our plan. You can call KEPRO at 1-888-317-0751 (TTY: 1-855-843-4776). For more information, see Chapter 2 of your *Member Handbook* 

# **Multi-Language Insert**

# **Multi-Language Interpreter Services**

ATENCIÓN: Si habla español, contamos con servicios de asistencia lingüística que se encuentran disponibles para usted de manera gratuita. Llame al **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**), de 8 a.m. a 8 p.m., de lunes a viernes. Después del horario de atención, los fines de semana y días feriados federales, es posible que se le solicite dejar un mensaje. Se le devolverá la llamada el siguiente día hábil. La llamada es gratuita.

注意:如果您說中文,您可以免費獲得語言協助服務。請致電 1-855-735-4398 (TTY: 711),服務時間為週一至週五,從早上8點到晚上8點。非服務時間、週末和聯邦假日,您可能會需要留言。我們將在下一個工作日內回電給您。此為免付費專線。

ATTENTION : si vous parlez français, des services d'assistance linguistique gratuits sont à votre disposition. Appelez le **1-855-735-4398** (TTY : **711**) du lundi au vendredi, de 8 h à 20 h. En dehors des heures d'ouverture et durant le week-end et les jours fériés, il vous sera peut-être demandé de laisser un message. Vous serez rappelé le jour ouvrable suivant. L'appel est gratuit.

LƯU Ý: Nếu quý vị nói tiếng Việt, chúng tôi có các dịch vụ hỗ trợ ngôn ngữ miễn phí cho quý vị. Vui lòng gọi **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**), từ 8 a.m. đến 8 p.m., Thứ Hai đến Thứ Sáu. Sau giờ làm việc, vào cuối tuần và ngày lễ liên bang, quý vị có thể được yêu cầu để lại tin nhắn. Cuộc gọi của quý vị sẽ được trả lời vào ngày làm việc tiếp theo. Cuộc gọi này được miễn phí.

HINWEIS: Wenn Sie Deutsch sprechen, steht Ihnen ein kostenloser Übersetzungsdienst zur Verfügung. Wählen Sie dafür **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**) von Montag bis Freitag zwischen 8 und 20 Uhr. Außerhalb dieser Zeiten, an Wochenenden und gesetzlichen Feiertagen werden Sie möglicherweise gebeten, eine Nachricht zu hinterlassen. Ihr Anruf wird innerhalb des nächsten Arbeitstages beantwortet. Der Anruf ist kostenlos.

ВНИМАНИЕ: если вы говорите на русском языке, вы можете бесплатно получить помощь переводчика. Позвоните по номеру **1-855-735-4398** (ТТҮ: **711**), с 8 а.т. до 8 р.т. с понедельника по пятницу. В нерабочее время, в выходные дни и государственные праздники вас могут попросить оставить сообщение. Вам перезвонят на следующий рабочий день. Звонки бесплатные.

انتباه: في حال كنت تتحدث اللغة العربية، تتوفر لك خدمات مساعدة لغوية مجانية. اتصل على الرقم 4398-735-735-1-177: (711: 711)، من الساعة 8 مساعة 8 مساءً من الاثنين إلى الجمعة. وقد يُطلب منك ترك رسالة بعد انتهاء ساعات العمل وفي عطلات نهاية الأسبوع والإجازات الفيدرالية. وستتم معاودة الاتصال بك خلال يوم العمل التالي. والاتصال مجاني.

ATENÇÃO: se falar português, estão disponíveis serviços de assistência gratuitos no seu idioma. Ligue para o número **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**) de segunda-feira a sexta-feira, das 8:00 às 20:00. Se ligar fora deste horário, num fim de semana ou num feriado federal, poderá ter de deixar mensagem. A sua chamada será devolvida no próximo dia útil. A chamada é gratuita.

ATANSYON: Si ou pale Kreyòl-Franse, sèvis asistans lang disponib gratis pou ou. Rele **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**), soti lendi pou rive vandredi, de 8è am. pou 8è pm. Apre lè travay, nan wikenn ak jou konje federal yo, yo ka mande w pou kite yon mesaj. Y ap retounen w apèl la nan pwochen jou ouvrab la. Apèl la gratis.

УВАГА: якщо ви володієте українською мовою, вам безкоштовно доступні послуги мовної підтримки. Телефонуйте за номером **1-855-735-4398** (ТТҮ: **711**) з 8:00 до 20:00 з понеділка по п'ятницю. У неробочий час, у вихідні та державні свята вас можуть попросити залишити повідомлення. Ваш дзвінок буде оброблено протягом наступного робочого дня. Дзвінок безкоштовний.

توجه: اگر پشتو صحبت می کنید، خدمات کمک زبان، رایگان، در دسترس شما است. با شماره 4398-735-735-1-18 تماس بگیرید (711: TTY)، از 8 صبح تا 8 بعد از ظهر، از دوشنبه تا جمعه. پس از ساعات کاری، در تعطیلات آخر هفته و در تعطیلات فدرال، ممکن است از شما خواسته شود که پیامی بگذارید. تماس شما ظرف یک روز کاری آینده برگردانده خواهد شد. تماس رایگان است.

মনে রাখবেন: আপনি বাংলা ভাষাতে কথা বললে আপনার জন্য ভাষা সহায়তা পরিষেবাটি নিখরচায় আপনার জন্য রয়েছে। সোমবার থেকে শুক্রবার, সকাল ৪টা থেকে রাত্রি ৪টা অবধি **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**), নম্বরে ফোন করুন। নির্ধারিত সময়ের পরে, সপ্তাহান্তের এবং ফেডেরাল ছুটির দিনগুলিতে আপনাকে মেসেজ রেখে যেতে বলা হতে পারে। পরবর্তী কাজের দিনে আপনাকে রিটার্ন কল করা হবে। এই কলটি নিঃশুল্ক।

توجه: اگر فارسی صحبت میکنید، خدمات کمک زبان به صورت رایگان در اختیار شما قرار میگیرد. با شماره 715-735-735-1 تماس بگیرید (717: 711)، از 8 صبح تا 8 بعد از ظهر، از دوشنبه تا جمعه. پس از ساعات کاری، در تعطیلات آخر هفته و در تعطیلات فدرال، ممکن است از شما خواسته شود که پیامی بگذارید. تماس شما ظرف یک روز کاری آینده برگردانده خواهد شد. تماس رایگان است.

VINI RE: Nëse flisni shqip, ju ofrohen shërbime të asistencës gjuhësore, pa pagesë. Telefononi numrin **1-855-735-4398** (TTY: **711**), nga ora 8:00 deri në 20:00, nga e hëna në të premte. Pas këtij orari, gjatë fundjavave dhe pushimeve zyrtare federale, mund t'ju kërkohet të lini një mesazh. Telefonata juaj do të marrë përgjigje brenda ditës vijuese të punës. Telefonata është pa pagesë.

توجه: اگر به زبان دری صحبت می کنید، خدمات کمک زبان به صورت رایگان در دسترس شما است. از دوشنبه تا جمعه،از 8 صبح تا 8 بعد از ظهر، با شماره 4398-735-1857 (717: 711) تماس بگیرید. در رخصتی های آخر هفته و در رخصتی های فدرال ایالتی، ممکن است از شما خواسته شود که پیام بگذارید. تماس شما ظرف یک روز کاری آینده برگردانده خواهد شد. تماس رایگان است.